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Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2016
Change
Other income (deductions) (In millions)
Interest income on the $125.0 million Westmoreland Loan (Note 11) beginning

February 1,2016 $ 9.0
Losses recorded in 2015 on items included in other investments related to a

former PNMR subsidiary that ceased operations in 2008 1.1
Interest income from IRS, net of related expenses (Note 13) 0.8
Other 0.5

Net Change $ 114

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2016
Change
Interest charges: (In millions)
Issuance of the $125.0 million BTMU Term Loan Agreement on February 1,

2016 (Note 9) $ (3.4)
Higher short term borrowings (1.8)
Issuance of the $150.0 million PNMR 2015 Term Loan Agreement on March 9,

2015 (1.2)
Maturity of $118.8 million of long-term debt on May 15,2015 43
Other 02

Net Change $ (1.9)

Income taxes
Reduction in benefit due to change in segment eamings (loss) before income

taxes $ 3.0)
Impairment of wind energy production tax credits recorded in 2015 1.1
Impairment of New Mexico state net operating loss recorded in 2015 04
Other 0.1)

Net Change $ (1.6)

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Statements of Cash Flows
The changes in PNMR’s cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to September 30,2015 are summarized as follows:

Nine Months Ended September
30,
2016 2015 Change

(In millions)

Net cash flows from.

Operating activities $ 3210 §$ 3356 $ (i46)
Investing activities (604.8) (387.2) (217.6)
Financing activities 2454 503 195.1

Net change in cash and cash equivalents $§ (384) § (13) $§ (37.1)

Changes 1n PNMR’s cash flow from operating activities result from net eamings, adjusted for items impacting eamings that do not provide or use
cash. See Results of Operations above. Certain changes in assets and liabilities resulting from normal operations also impact operating cash flows. In
addition, contributions to PNMR s pension and postretirement benefit plans were $30.0 million lower 1n the nine months ended September 30, 2016 than in
2015 due to a $30.0 million contribution to the PNM pension trust in the nine months ended September 30, 2015 that did not recur in 2016 In addition,
PNMR made income tax payments of $0.9 mullion in the nine months ended September 30,2016 compared to income tax refunds recerved of $1.6 million 1n
the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

The changes 1n PNMR’s cash flows from investing activities relate primarily to an increase of $90 9 million 1n utility plant additions in the nine
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months ended September 30, 2016 compared to 2015 Utility plant additions’at PNM were $76 2 nullion higher in the niné months ended September 30,
2016 than in 2015. The PNM increase includes the $163.3 million purchase of "

the asscts underlying threc of the leases for PVNGS Unit 2 (Note 6) on January 15, 2016 and higher nuclear fuel purchases of $2 8 million, offset by decreascs
in other generation additions of $69.9 million, including decreases of renewable additions of $52.1 mullion, and lower transmission and distnbution
additionsof $20.0 million TNMP utility plant additions increased $2.6 million n the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to 2015, mcluding
increases 10 transmussion and distribution additions of $2.9 mullion offset by lower AMS additions of $0.3 mullion. Corporate plant additions increased $12.2
millioh in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to 2015, including increases related to PNMR computer hardware and software additions of
$15.9 mullion offset by decreases in utility plant additions related to PNMR Development of $3.7 million. Investing activities in 2016 also includes the
1nitial funding of the Westmoreland Loan, net of fees, and the $15 0 million principal recerved on that loan (Note 11). :

Theichanges in PNMR’s éash flows from financing activities mclude a' $108.3 million increase 1n net short-term borrowing activity in the nine
months ended September 30, 2016 compared to 2015. In 2016, financing activities include a long—term borrowing, net of fees, of $122.5 milhion under the
BTMU Term Loan Agreement and principal repayments of $17.2 nullion on that loan. NM Capital used ‘the proceeds of the BTMU Term Loan Agreement to
provide funds for the Westmoreland Loan. In® May 2016, PNM entered into the $175.0 million PNM 2016 Term Loan Agreement and used a portion of the
proceeds to prepay $125 0 nullion outstanding under the PNM Multi-draw Term Loan: In 2016, PNM also participated in the 1ssuance of $146.0 million of
its senior unsecured notes, pollution control revenue bonds to refund the same amount of outstanding PCRBs. In 2016, TNMP issued $60.0 million 0f3.53%
first mortgage bonds and used the funds to réduce short-term debt and intercompiny debt. In 2015, long-term borrowings of $150.0 mullion under the PNMR
2015 Term Loan Agreement were used to repay $118 8 mullion of 9.25% senior unsecured notes that matured on May 15, 2015 and fof general corporate
purposes. In 2015, PNM issued $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.850% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2025. PNM used the proceeds to repay
the $175.0 million PNM 2014 Term Loan agreement and to reduce short-term debt. In 2015, PNM also participated in the successful refarketing of $39.3
million of senior unsecured notes, pollutlon control revenue bonds and had $25.0 million of additional long-term borrowings under the PNM Multr—draw

Term Loan. ! i

t

'Financing Activities , .o

'
¢

See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Fmanmal Statements in the 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Note 9 for additional information
concernmg the Company’s financing activitiés. PNM must obtain NMPRC approval for any financing transaction having a maturity of more than- 18 months.
In addition, PNM files its annual short-term financing plan with the NMPRC. PNMR, PNM, and TNMP are subject to debt-to-capital ratio requlrements of less

than or equal to 65% The Company’s ab1111y to access the credit and capltal markets at a reasonable cost is largely dependent upon its:
¥

. Abulity to eam a fair return on equity *

. Results ofoperatlons

. Ability to obtain required regulatory approvals

. Conditions in the financial markets 1
. Credit ratings K

On December 17, 2015, TNMP entered into an agreemént, which provided that TNMP would issue $60.0 million aggregate principal amount of
3.53% first mortgage bonds, due 2026, Sn or about February 10, 2016. TNMP issued the Series 2016ABonds on February 10, 2016 and used the proceeds to
reduce short-term debt and intercompany debt. " . .

As of February 1, 2016, NM Caputal, a wholly owned subsidiary of PNMR, entered into a $125.0 million term loan agreement (the “BTMU Term Loan
Agteement”), among NM Capital, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubish1 UFJ, Ltd (“BTMU™), as lender, and BTMU, as Administrative Agent. The BTMU Term
Loan Agreement has a maturity date of February 1, 2021 and béars intérest at a rate based on LIBOR plus a customary spread, which aggregated 3.51% at
September 30, 2016. The principal balance outstanding under the BTMU Term Loan Agreement was $107.8 million at September 30, 2016. PNMR, as parent
company of NM Capltal has guaranteed NM Capital’s obligations to BTMU. NM Capital utilized the proceeds of the BTMU Term Loan Agreement to
provide funding for the $125.0° millibn Westmoreland Loan*to a. ning-fenced, bankruptcy-remote, special-purpose entity, which is a subsidiary of
Westmoreland to finance the purchase price of the stock of SJCC. See'(Note 11).

e : i .

On May 205 2016, PNM entered into a $175.0 million term loan agreement (the “PNM 2016 Term Loan Agreement”). The PNM 2016 Term Loan
Agreement bears interest at a vanable rate, which was 1. 15% at September 30, 2016, and has a maturity date of November 17, 2017. PNM used a portion of
the proceeds of the PNM 2016 Term Loan Agreement to prepay without penalty the $125.0 mithion outstanding under the PNM Multi-draw Term Loan,
which had a scheduled matunty of June 21 2016. E . :
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On September 27, 2016, PNM participated 1n the 1ssuance and sale of an aggregate of $146.0 million of PCRBs by the City of Farmington, New
Mexico. The proceeds from the sale were utilized to refund an aggregate of $146.0 million of outstanding PCRBs previously issued by the City of
Farmington The arrangements governing the PCRBs result in PNM reflecting the bonds as debt on its financial statements. The PCRBs issued consist of the
2016 Senes A n the aggregate principal amount of $46.0 million and the 2016 Series B in the aggregate pnincipal amount of $100 0 nullion. Both series bear
interest at a rate of 1.875% for the period from September 27, 2016 through September 30, 2021, have a mandatory tender for remarketing on October 1,
2021, and a final maturity on Apnl 1,2033.

On October 21, 2016, PNMR entered 1nto a letter of credit arrangement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. under which letters of credit aggregating
$30.3 mullion (the “JPM LOCs™) were issued to replace letters of credit 1ssued from available capacity under the PNMR Revolving Credit Facility. The letters
of credit issued from available capacity under the PNMR Revolving Credit Facility will be surrendered and canceled upon acceptance of the JP'M LOCs by
the surety companies that 1ssued the reclamation bonds. The letters of credit facilitate the posting of reclamation bonds, which SJCC is required to post in
connection with permuts relating to the operation of the San Juan mine (Note 11).

At September 30, 2016, interest rates on outstanding borrowings were 1.38% for the PNMR Term Loan Agreement and 1.42% for the PNMR 2015
Term Loan Agreement.

Capital Requirements

PNMR s total capital requirements consist of construction expenditures and cash dividend requirements for PNMR common stock and PNM preferred
stock. Key activities in PNMR’s current construction program include:

. Upgrading generation resources, including expenditures for compliance with environmental requirements
. Expanding the electric transmission and distribution systems
. Purchasing nuclear fuel

Projected capital requirements, including amounts expended through September 30,2016, are:

2016 2017-2020 Total
(In millions)
Construction expenditures $ 5727 $ 1,7492 § 23219
Dividends on PNMR common stock 701 280.4 350.5
Dividends on PNM preferred stock 0.5 2.1 26
Total capital requirements $ 6433 § 2,031.7 $ 26750

The construction expenditure estimates are under continuing review and subject to ongoing adjustment, as well as to Board review and approval. The
construction expenditures above include environmental upgrades of $0.8 mullion at SJGS and $84.8 nullion at Four Comers, 30 MW of new solar capacity to
supply power to a new data center being constructed by Facebook Inc (Note 12), and the January 2016 purchase of the assets underlying three of the PVNGS
Unit 2 leases at the expiration of those leases for $163.3 million. Expenditures for environmental upgrades are estimated to be $41.2 million m 2016,
including amounts expended through September 30, 2016. Seec Note 11 and Commitments and Contractual Obligations below. The ability of PNMR to pay
dividends on its common stock is dependent upon the ability of PNM and TNMP to be able to pay dividends to PNMR. Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements 1n the 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K describes regulatory and contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by PNM and
TNMP.

During the nine months ended September 30,2016, PNMR met its capital requirements and construction expenditures through cash generated from
operations, as well as 1ts liquidity amangements, and the additional bommowings described under Financing Activities above.

In addition to the capital requirements for construction expenditures and dividends, the Company has long-term debt that must be paid or refinanced
at maturity. As indicated above, the $125 0 million PNM Multi-draw Term Loan was repaid prior to its June 21, 2016 maturity. Note 6 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K contains additional information about the maturities of long-term debt. In
addition, NM Capital 1s required to make quarterly payments of at least $5.0 million under the BTMU Term Loan Agreement. However, NM Capital must
also utilize all amounts, le
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ss taxes and fees, 1t recerves under the Westmoreland Loan to repay the BTMU Term Loan Agreement. Based on scheduled payments on the Westmoreland
Loan, NM Capital estimates it will make principal payments of $45.1 million on the BTMU Term Loan Agreement 1n the twelve months ended September 30,
2017. Also, the one-year $150.0 million PNMR Term Loan Agreement matures on December 21,2016 and $57 0 mullion of PCRBs are subject to mandatory
tender and remarketing on June 1, 2017. PNMR and PNM anticipate that funds to repay the long-term debt matunties and term loans will come from entering
“into new arrangements stmilar to the existing agreements, borrowing under their revolving credit facilities, 1ssuance of new long-term debt, or a combination
of these sources. The Company has from time to time refinanced or repurchased portions of 1ts outstanding debt before scheduled matunty. Depending on
market conditions, the Company may refinance other debt 1ssuances or make additional debt repurchases 1n the future. '
> +

Liquidity ) ,

PNMR’s hiqudity arrangements include the PNMR Revolving Credit Facility and the PNM Revolving Credit Facility both of which expire in
October 2020 and the TNMP Revolving Credit Facility that expires in September 2018. The PNMR Revolving Credit Facility has a financing capacity of
$300.0 millién, the PNM Revolving Credit Facility has a financing capacity of $400.0 million, and the TNMP Revolving Credit Facility has a financing
capacity of $75.0 million. PNM also has the $50.0 million PNM New Mexico Credit Facility, which expires in January 2018. The Company believes the
terms and conditions of these facilities are consistent with those of other investment grade revolving credit facilities in the utility industry.

The revolving credit facilities and the PNM New Mexico Crecit Facility provide short-term borrowing capacity. The revolving credit facilities also
allow letters of credit to be issued. Letters of credit reduce the available capacity under the facilities. The Company utilizes these credit facilities and cash
flows from operations to provide funds for both construction and operational expenditures. The Company’s business 1s seasonal with more revenues and cash
flows fromk'operations being generated 1 the summer months. In general, the Company relies on the credit facilities to be the nitial funding source for
construction expenditures Accordingly, borrowings under the facilities may increase over time. Depending on market and other conditions, the Company
will penodically sell long-term debt and use the proceeds to reduce the borrowings under the credit facilities. Borrowings under the PNMR Revolving Crédl_t
Facility ranged from $79.6 mullion to $177.5 mullion dunng the three months ended September 30,2016 and from $40 0 million to $177.5 mullion durning the
nine months ended September 30, 2016. Borrowings under the PNM Revolving Credit Facility ranged from $10.0 million to $131.0 nullion during the three
months ended September 30,"2016 and zero to $135.0 mullion dunng the nine months ended September 30, 2016. Borrowings under the PNM New Mexico
Credit Facility ranged from $15.0 mullion to $35.0 million during the three months ended September 30, 2016 and zero to $50.0 million durning the nine
months ended September 30, 2016. Borrowings under the TNMP Revolving Credit Facility ranged from zero to $36.0 million during the three months ended
September 30,2016 and zero to $70.0 million dunng the nine months ended September 30,2016. At September 30, 2016, the average interest rate was'1.78%
for the PNMR Revolving Credit Facility, 1.66% for the PNM Revolving Credit Facility, and 1.68% for the PNM New Mexico Credit Facility. At
September 30, 2016, TNMP had no borrowings under the TNMP Revolving Credit Facility or from PNMR under its intercompany loan agreement

The Company cumently believes that 1ts capital requirements can be met through intemal cash generation, existing or new credit arangements, and
access to public and private capital markets. To cover the difference in the'amounts and timing of intemal cash generation and cash réquirements, the .
Company intends to use short-term borrowings under its current and future liquidity arrangements. However, if difficult market conditions expenenced
during the recent recession return, the Company may not be able to access the capital markets or renew credit facilities when they expire. Should that occur,
the Company would seek to improve cash flows by reducing capital expenditures and exploning other available altematives. Also; PNM could consider
“seeking authornzation for the 1ssuance of first mortgage bonds to improve access to the capital markets.

In addition to its internal cash generation, the Company anticipates that it will be necessary to obtain additional long-term financing to fund its
capital requirements during the 2016-2020 pertod. This could include new debt issuances and/or new equity. N ' :

Information conceming the credit ratings for PNMR, PNM, and TNMP was set forth under the heading Liquidity in the MD&A contained in the 2015
Annual Reports on Form 10-K Currently, all of the credit ratings issued by both Moody’s and S&P on the Company’s debt are investment grade. As of
October 21, 2016, ratings on the Company’s secunities were as follows:
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PNMR PNM TNMP
S&P
Corporate rating BBB+ BBB+ BBB+
Senior secured debt * * A
Senior unsecured debt * BBB+ *
Preferred stock * BBB- *
Moody’s
Issuer rating Baa3 Baa2 A3
Senior secured debt * * Al
Senior unsecured debt * Baa2 *
* Not applicable

Both S&P and Moody’s have PNMR, PNM, and TNMP on a stable outlook. However, the ultimate outcome from PNM’s NM 2015 Rate Case,
including the pending appeal before the NM Supreme Court, discussed in Note 12, could affect both the outlook and credit ratings. Investors are cautioned
that a secunty rating 1s not a recommendation to buy. sell, or hold secunties, that 1t is subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating
organization, and that each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

A summary of liquidity arrangements as of October 21, 2016 is as follows:

PNMR PNM TNMP PNMR
Separate Separate Separate Consolidated
(In millions)
Fimancing capacity:

Revolving credit facility $ 3000 $ 4000 $ 750 $ 775.0
PNM New Mexico Credit Facility — 50.0 — 50.0
Total financing capacity $ 3000 §$ 4500 $ 750 $ 825.0

Amounts outstanding as of October 21,2016:
Revolving credit facility $ 1631 § 240 $ — 3 187.1
PNM New Mexico Credit Facility — 6.0 — 6.0
Letters of credit 36.5 2.5 0.1 39.1
Total short-term debt and letters of credit 199.6 325 01 2322
Remaining availability as of October 21,2016 $ 1004 §$ 4175 § 749 § 592.8
Invested cash as of October 21,2016 $ 15 § — $ 03 3§ 1.8

The above table includes a $30.3 million of letter of credit support issued under the PNMR Revolving Credit Facility to facilitate the posting of
reciamation bonds in connection with the purchase of SICC by a subsidiary of Westmoreland from BHP. As discussed in Note 11, on October 21, 2016,
PNMR entered 1nto separate letter of credit arrangements with a bank under which letters of credit were 1ssued to replace the letters of credit 1ssued under the
PNMR Revolving Credit Facility The letters of credit 1ssued under the PNMR Revolving Credit Facility will be surrendered and canceled upon acceptance
of the replacement letters of credit by the surety companies that issued the reclamation bonds. The above table excludes intercompany debt. As of
October 21,2016, PNM and TNMP had no intercompany borrowings from PNMR. The remaining availability under the revolving credit facilities at any
point 1n time varies based on a number of factors, mncluding the timing of collections of accounts receivables and payments for construction and operating
expenditures.

PNMR can offer new shares of common stock through the PNM Resources Direct Plan under a SEC shelf registration statement that expires 1n August
2018. PNM has a shelf registration statement for up to $250.0 million of senior unsecured notes that expires in May 2017.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

PNMR’s off-balance’ sheet arrangements include PNM’s operating leases for portions of PVNGS Units 1 and 2 and, until April 1, 2015, the EIP
transmission line. These arrangements help ensure PNM the availability of lower-cost generation needed to serve customers. Sec MD&A ~ Off-Balance Sheet
Arrangements and Notes 7 and 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 1n the 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K, as well as Note 5.

Commitments and Coitractual Obligations -

PNMR, PNM, and TNMP have contractual obligations for long-term debt, operating leases, construction expenditures, purchase obligations, and
certain other long-term‘obligations. See MD&A — Commitments and Contractual Obligations in the 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K
[ . N -

Conﬁl;gent Provisions of Certain Obligations i

As discussed in the 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K, PNMR, PNM, and TNMP have a number of debt obligations and other contractual
commitments that contain contingent provisions. Some”of these! if triggered, could affect the liquidity of the Company. In the unlikely event that the
contingent requirements were to be triggered, PNMR; PNM, or TNM? could be required to provide secunty, immediately pay outstanding obligations, or be
prevented from drawing on unused capacity under ceftain credit agreements. The contingent provisions also include contractual increases 1n the interest rate
charged on certaini ‘of thc Company’s short-term debt obligations in the event of 'a downgradé in credit ratings. The Company belicves 1ts financing
arrangements are sufficient to meet the requireni'er}ts of the contingent provisions. No conditions, have occurred that would restilt in any of the above
contingent provisions being implemented. ' '

Capital Structure :
The capitalization tablcs below include the current matunities of long-term debt, but do not include short-term debt and do not include operating

lease obligations as debt.

.

) September 30, December 31,
2016 2015
PNMR, ‘ . ' ‘
Zéw&cgqmqn_egu'ity 42.1% 44.0%
Preferred stock of subsidiary ) ‘ 40.3%_ R 03'%;
| {Long-term debt 57.6% 55.7%
l Total capitaﬁzation ' T, 100.0% + 100.0%
[ f
PNM \ v o K " y
{PNM common equity 46.0% 45.3%
Preferred stock ' ! 0.4% 0.4%
v fCong-term debt 53.6% 54.3%
k! "Total capitalization ) . 1000% . ,100.0%
TNMP~ e o i s
\Common equity . 58.7% 59.6%
Long-term debt * 413% 40.4%
|__Total capitalization 100.0% 100.0%
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OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY
Climate Change Issues
Background

In 2015, GHG associated with PNM’'s interests 1n 1ts generating plants included approximately 6.4 million metric tons of CO;,, which comprses the
vast majority of PNM’s GHG. By companson, the total GHG in the United States in 2014, the latest year for which EPA has published this data, were
approximately 6.9 billion metric tons, of which approximately 5.5 billion metric tons were CO,

PNM has several programs underway to reduce or offset GHG from 1ts resource portfolio, thereby reducing its exposure to climate change regulation.
SeeNote 12 In 2015, PNM completed construction of 40 MW of utility-scale solar generation, bringing 1ts total owned solar generation capacity to 107
MW Since 2003, PNM has purchased the entire output of New Mexico Wind, which has an aggregate capacity of 204 MW, and, in January 2015, began
purchasing the full output of Red Mesa Wind, which has an aggregate capacity of 102 MW. PNM has a 20-year PPA for the output of Lightning Dock
Geothermal, which began providing power to PNM in January 2014. The current capacity of the geothermal facility is 4 MW and future expansion may result
mn up to 9 MW of generation capacity. Additionally, PNM has a customer distributed solar generation program that represented 57.3 MW at September 30,
2016 PNM’s distributed solar programs will reduce PNM’s annual production from fossil-fueled electricity generation by about 136 GWh. PNM offers 1ts
customers a comprehensive portfolio of energy efficiency and load management programs, with a budget of $25 8 million for the program year beginning in
June 2016. PNM estimates these programs saved approximately 79 GWh of electricity in 2015. Over the next 18 years, PNM projects energy efficiency and
load management programs will provide the equivalent of approximately 9,000 GWh of electricity, which will avoid at least 5.5 mullion metric tons of CO,
based upon projected emissions from PNM’s system-wide resources. These estimates are subject to change because of the uncertainty of many of the
underlying vanables, including changes in demand for electricity, and complex relationships between those varables.

Management periodically updates the Board on implementation of the corporate environmental policy and the Company’s environmental
management systems, promotion of energy efficiency, and use of renewable resources. The Board 1s also advised of the Company’s practices and procedures
to assess the sustamability impacts of operations on the environment. The Board considers associated issues around climate change, the Company’s GHG
exposures, and the financial consequences that might result from potential federal and/or state regulation of GHG.

As of December 31, 2015, approximately 70.6% of PNM’s generating capacity, including resources owned, leased, and under PPAs, all of which is
located within the United States, consisted of coal or gas-fired generation that produces GHG. Based on current forecasts, the Company does not expect its
output of GHG from existing sources to increase significantly 1n the near-term. Many factors affect the amount of GHG emitted. For example, if new natural
gas-fired generation resources are added to meet increased load as anticipated in PNM’s current IRP, GHG would be incrementally mncreased. In addition,
plant performance could impact the amount of GHG emitted. If PVNGS experienced prolonged outages, PNM might be required to utilize other power supply
resources such as gas-fired generation, which could increase GHG. As described 1n Note 11, PNM received approval for the December 31, 2017 shutdown of
SJGS Units 2 and 3 as part of 1ts strategy to address the regional haze requirements of the CAA. The shutdown of Units 2 and 3 would result 1n a reduction of
GHG for the enture station of approximately 50%, including a reduction of approximately 28% for the Company’s ownership interests. Although replacement
power for these units includes some gas-fired generation, the reduction in GHG from the retirement of the coal-fired generation would be far greater than the
increase in GHG from replacement generation.

Because of PNM’s dependence on fossil-fueled generation, legislation or regulation that imposes a limit or cost on GHG could impact the cost at
which electricity is produced. While PNM expects to recover any such costs through rates, the timing and outcome of proceedings for cost recovery are
uncertain In addition, to the extent that any additional costs are recovered through rates, customers may reduce their usage, relocate facilities to other areas
with lower energy costs, or take other actions that ultimately will adversely impact PNM.

PNM’s generating stations are located in the and southwest. Access to water for cooling for some of these facilities 1s critical to continued operations.
Forecasts for the impacts of climate change on water supply in the southwest range from reduced precipitation to changes in the timing of precipitation In
either case, PNM’s facilities requining water for cooling will need to mitigate the impacts of climate change through adaptive measures. Current measures
employed by PNM generating stations such as air cooling, use of grey water, improved reservoir operations and shortage shanng arrangements with other
water users will continue to be important to sustain operations.
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PNM s service areas occasionally experience pettodic high winds, forest fires, and severe thunderstorms TNMP has operations in the Gulf Coast arca
of Texas, which expenences peniodic hurncanes and drought conditions. In addition to potentially causing physical damage to Company-owned facilities,
which disrupts the ability to transmit and/or distnibute energy. weather and other events of nature can temporanly reduce customers’ usage and demand for
energy.

Changes in the climate are generally not expected to have material consequences to the Company n the near-term. The Company cannot anticipate
or predict the potential long-term effects of climate change on its assets and operations.»
—

EPA Regulation . . .

In Apr11 2007, the US Supreme Court held that EPA has the authonty to regulate GHG under the CAA: This decision heightened the importance of
this 1ssue for the energy industry In December 2009, EPA released 1ts endangerment finding stating that the atmospheric concentrations of six key
greenhouse gases (CO;, methane, nitrous oxides, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluoride) endanger the public health and welfare of
current and future generations. In May 2010, EPA released the final PSD and Title V Greenhouse Gas Tatloring Rule (the “Tailoring Rule”) to address GHG
from stationary sources under the CAA perrmttmg programs. The purpose of the rule was to “tatlor” the applicability of two programs, PSD .and Title V
operating permut programs, to avoid 1mpactmg “millions of small GHG emutters. The rule focused on the largest sources of GHG, including Tossil-fueled
electric generating units. This program covered the construction of new emission units that emit GHG of at least 100,000 tons per year in CO; equivalents
(even 1f PSD 1s not triggered for other pollutants). In addition, modifications at ex15tmg ma;or-emlttmg facilities that increase GHG by at least 75,000 tons per
year in CO; equivalents would be subject to PSD permitting requirements, even 1f they did not significantly increase emussions of any other pollutant. As a
result, PNM’s fossil-fueled generating plants were more likely to trigger PSD permitting requirements because of the magnitude of GHG However, as
discussed below, a court case 1n 2014 now limuts the extent of the Tailoring Rule. |

; -

On June 26, 2012, the DC Circuit rejected challenges to EPA’s 2009 GHG endangerment finding, GHG standards for light-duty vehicles, PSD
Interpretive Memorandum (EPA’s so-called GHG “Timing Rule™), and the Tailoring Rule. The court found that EPA’s endangerment finding and its light-
duty vehicle rule “are neither atbitrary nor capncnous ” that “EPA’s interpretation of the govemmg CAAprovxslons 1s unambiguously correct,” and that “no
petitioner has standing to challenge the Timing and Tatloning Rules.” On October 15,2013, the US Supreme Court granted a petitton for a Writ of Certiorar
regarding the permitting of stationary sources that emit GHG. The US Supreme Court limuted the question that 1t would review to: “Whether EPA permussibly
determined that its regulation ofgreenhouse gas enussions from new motor véhicles triggered permitting requirements under the Clean Air Act for stationary
sources that emit greenhouse gases.” Specifically, the case dealt with whether EPA’s determination that regulation of GHG from motor vehicles required EPA
to regulate stationary sources under the PSD and Title V permitting programs. The petitioners argued that EPA’s determination was unlawful as it violates
Congressmnal intent. -

On June 23, 2014, the US Supreme Court issued 1ts opinion on the above case. The US Supreme Court largely reversed the DC Circuit. First, the US
Supreme Court found the CAA does not compel or permit EPA to adopt an interpretation of the act that requires a source to obtain a PSD or Title V permit on
the sole basis of its potential GHG. Second, EPA had argued that even if it was not required to regulate GHGs under the PSD and Title V programs, the
Tailoning Rule was nonetheless justified on the grounds that 1t was a reasonable nterpretation of the CAA. The US Supreme Court rejected this argument.
Third, the US Supreme Court found EPA lacked authority to “tailor” the CAA’s unambiguous numerical thresholds of 100 or 250 tons per year. Fourth, the
US Supreme Court found that it would be reasonable for EPA to interptet the CAA to limit the PSD program for GHGs to “anyway” sources — those Sources
that have to ¢comply with the PSD program for other non-GHG pollutants. The US Supreme Court said that EPA needed to establish a de minimis level below
which BACT would not be required for “anyway” sources. In response to the US Supreme Court decision, EPA released a proposed rule on October 3, 2016,
to revise the permitting rules for GHG under the CAA.-Among other things, the proposed rule would set the Slgmﬂcam Emissions Rate (“SER”) for GHGs
under the major source permitting progfam at 75,000 tons of CO, equlvalent per year for new and modified sources that are already subject to NSR based on
emission of other pollutants. If finalized as proposed, the rule would requlre anew ma_]or source or major modification that triggers PSD permitting for other
criteria pollutants like NOx to.undergo a BACT review for GHG if the potential to émit GHG exceeds the 75,000 tons per year. EPA also 1s requesting
comments on establishing a GHG SER level at’or above 30,000 tons of CO, equivalent per year. Comments on the proposed rule are due on December 2,
2016. ) ’

On June 25,2013, President Obama announced his Climate Action Plan which outlines how his administration plans to cut GHG in the United States,
prepare the country for the impacts of climate change, and lead 1ntemational efforts to combat and prepare for global warming. The plan proposes actions that
would lead to the reduction of GHG by 17% below 2005 levels by 2020. The President also issued a Presidential Memorandum to EPA to continue
development of the GHG NSPS regulations for electric generators. The Presidential Memorandum establishes a timeline for the reproposal and 1ssuance of a
GHG NSPS for new X N
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sources under section 111(b) of the CAA and a timeline for the proposal and final rule for developing carbon pollution standards, regulations, or guidelines
for GHG reductions from existing sources under Section 111(d) of the CAA. The Presidential Memorandum further directs EPA to allow the use of “market-
based instruments” and “other regulatory flexibilities” to ensure standards will allow for continued reliance on a range of energy sources and technologies,
and that the standards are developed and implemented 1n a manner that provides for reliable and affordable energy EPA 1s to undertake the rulemaking
through direct engagement with states, “as they will play a central role in establishing and implementing standards for existing power plants,” and with
utility leaders, labor leaders, non-governmental organizations, tribal officials, and other stakeholders.

EPA met the President’s timeline for issuance of carbon pollution standards for new sources under Section 111(b) and for existing sources under
Section 111(d) of the CAA. On August 3, 2015, EPA 1ssued 1ts final standards to Iimit CO , emissions from power plants. The final rule was published on
October 23. 2015. Three separate but related actions took place: (1) the final Carbon Pollution Standards for new, modified, and reconstructed power plants
were established (under Section 111(b)); (2) the final Clean Power Plan was issued to set standards for carbon emission reductions from existing power plants
(under Section 111(d)); and (3) a proposed federal plan associated with the final Clean Power Plan was released

EPA’s final rule to limit GHG emissions from new, modified, and reconstructed power plants establishes standards based upon certain, specific
conditions. For newly constructed and reconstructed base load natural gas-fired stationary combustion turbines, the EPA finalized a standard of 1,000 1b
CO-/MWh-gross based on efficient natural gas combined cycled technology as the best system of emissions reductions (‘BSER”). Alternatively, owners and
operators of base load natural gas-fired combustion turbines may elect to comply with a standard based on an output of 1,030 1b CO./MWh-net. A new source
1s any newly constructed fossil fuel-fired power plant that commenced construction after January 8, 2014

The final standards for coal-fired power plants vary depending on whether the unit is new, modified, or reconstructed. The BSER for new steam units
1s a supercritical pulverized coal unit with partial carbon capture and storage Based on that technology, new coal-fired units are required to meet an
emissions standard equal to 1,400 Ibs CO,/MWh from the beginning of the power plant’s hife. The BSER for modified units 1s based on each affected unit’s
own best potential performance Standards will be in the form of an emission limit in pounds of CO, per MWh, which will apply to units with modifications
resulting in an increase of hourly CO, emissions of more than 10% relative to the emissions of the most recent five years from that unit The BSER for
reconstructed coal-fired power units is the performance of the most efficient generating technology for these types of units. Final emissions standards depend
on heat input Sources with heat input greater than 2,000 MMBTU/hour would be required to meet an emission imut of 1,800 Ibs CO,/MWh-gross, and
sources with a heat input of less than or equal to 2,000 MMBTU/hour would be required to meet an emission limit of 2,000 Ibs CO,/MWh-gross.

The final Clean Power Plan rule changed significantly in structure from the proposed rule that was released in June 2014. Changes include delaying
the first compliance date by two years from 2020 to 2022; adopting a new approach to calculating the emission targets which resulted in different state goals
than those ongmally proposed; adding a reliabitlity safety valve; and proposing rewards for early reductions. The rule establishes two numeric “emussion
standards” - one for “fossil-steam” units (coal- and oil-fired units) and one for natural gas-fired units (combined cycle only). The emisston standards are based
on emission reduction opportunities that EPA deemed achievable using technical assumptions for three “building blocks:” efficiency improvements at coal-
fired EGUs, displacement of affected EGUs with renewable energy, and displacement of coal-fired generation with natural gas-fired generation. The final
standards are 1,305 1b/MWH for fossil-steam units and 771 1b/MWH for gas units, both of which phase in over the period 2022-2030. To facilitate
implementation, EPA converted the emission standards into state goals. Each state’s goal reflects the average state-wide emission rate that all of the state’s
affected EGUs would meet in the aggregate 1f each one achieved the emission standards alone based upon a weighted average of each state’s unique mix of
affected units.

Under the final rule, the Clean Power Plan compliance schedule required states to make initial plan submissions to EPA by September 6, 2016. EPA
could then choose to grant up to a two-year extension provided that the 1nitial plan meets certain specified criterta for progress and consultation. States
recelving an extension must submit an update to EPA in 2017 and final plans by September 2018. States not requesting an extension were to submit their
final plans by September 2016. State plans can be based on either an emission standards (rate or mass) approach or a state measures approach. Under an
emisston standards approach, fedcrally enforceable emussion limits are placed directly on affected units in the state A state measures approach must meet
equivalent rates statewide, but may include some elements, such as renewable energy or energy efficiency requirements, that are not federally enforceable.
Plans using state measures may only be used with mass-based goals and must include “backstop™ federally enforceable standards for EGUs that will become
effective if the state measures fail to achieve the expected level of emission reductions.
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The Clean Power Plan also proposes a Clean Energy Incentive Program (“CEIP") designed to award credts for early development of certain renewable
energy and energy efficiency programs that displace fossil generation in 2020 and 2021 prior to the compliance obligation taking effect in 2022 On June 30,
2016, EPA published proposed design details of the CEIP Comments are due to EPA on November 1, 2016. In addition, the Clean Power Plan contauns a
reliability safety valve for individual power plants The reliability safety valve allows for a 90-day relief from CO, emissions limits 1f generating units need to
continue to operate and release excess emissions during emergencies that could compromise electric system reliabihity.

As discussed above, EPAissued a proposed Federal Plan 1n association with the Clean Power Plan. Under Section 111(d), EPAis authonzed to 1ssue a
federal plan for states that do not submit an approvable state plan. EPA indicates that states may voluntarily adopt the Federal Plan in whole or in part as its
state plan. EPA explains in its communications that the proposed Federal Plan will be released in advance of the deadline for submission of state plans to
provide regulatory certainty to states that fail to submit an approvable plan. The proposed Federal Plan will apply emussion reduction obligations directly on
affected EGUs. The plan presents two approaches: a rate-based emissions trading program and a mass-based emissions trading program. EPA indicates that it
will choose only one of these approaches in the final Federal Plan. However. the proposed rule will offer both approaches for states to use as models 1n their
own plans EPA asked for comments on the proposed Federal Plan by January 21, 2016. PNM submutted comments 1n response.

- )

Multiple states, utilities, and tradé groups filed petitions for review and motions to stéy in the DC Circuit. On January 21, 2016, the DC Circuit
denied the motions to stay the EPA’s section 111(d) rule (the Clean Power Plan). It did, however, expedite briefing 1 the case and set it for oral argument on
June 2, 2016. Under the court’s order, the parties were required to submit a proposed briefing format to the court by January 27, 2016. Briefing on all issues
was to be completed by April 22, 2016. Petitioners had asked for bifurcated briefing that would allow the core legal issues to be Iitigated first and the
programmatic 1ssues related to the rule to be litigated later depending on the outcome of the htigation. The court denied that request.

On January 26, 2016, 29 states and state agencies filed a petition to the US Supreme Court asking the court to reverse the DC Circuit’s decision and
stay the implementation of the Clean Power Plan. On February 9, 2016, the US Supreme Court granted the applications to stay the Clean Power Plan pending
judicial review of the rule. The US -Supreme Court issued a one-page order that stated, “The EPA rule to have states cut power sector carbon dioxide (CO3)
emisstons 32% by 2030 is stayed pending disposition of the applicants’ petitions for review in the United States Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Crrcuit.” The vote was 54 among the US Supreme Court Justices The decision means the Clean Power Plan is not 1n effect and states are not
obliged to comply with its requirements. If the rule prevails through the legal challenges, states will be able to resume preparing state plans and may still
have six more months to prepare initial' plans and 2 5 years for final plans (if an extenston is granted by EPA). The DC Circuit hedrd oral arguments on the
menits of the states’ case on September 27, 2016. The arguments were made in front of a 10-judge panel. There is no mandatory deadline for the DC Circuit to
make a deciston on the case and a decision 1s not expected until sometime 1n 2017. The stay will remain in effect pending US Supreme Court review 1f such
review is sought.

If the Clean Power Plan prevails, the rule will impact PNM’s existing and future fossil-fueled EGUs The existing Carbon Pollution Standards
covering new sources will also impact PNM’s generation fleet. Impacts could involve investments in additional renewables and energy efficiency programs,
efficiency improvements, and/or control technologies at PNM’s fossil-fueled EGUs. Under an emissions rate or-mass based trading program, PNM may be
required to purchase credits or allowances to comply with New Mexico’s final state plan. There are limited efficiency enhancement measures that may be
available to a subset of the existing EGUs; however, such measures would provide only marginal GHG improvements. The only emission control technology
for GHG reduction from coal and gas-fired power plants is carbon capture and sequestration, which 1s not yet a commercially demonstrated technology.
Additional GHG control technologies for existing EGUs may become viable in the future. The costs of purchasing carbon credits or allowances, making
improvements, or installing new technology could impact the economic viability of some plants. PNM estimates that implementation of the BART plan at
SJGS that required the installation of SNCRs ori Unuts 1 and 4 by early 2016, which has been completed, and the retirement of SIGS Units 2 and 3 by the end
of 2017 as described in Note 11, should provide a significant step for New Mexico to meet its ultimate compliance with Section 111(d). PNM is unable to
predict the impact of this rule on its fossil-fueled generation. \

Federal Legislation
Prospects for enactment 1n Congress of legislation imposing a new or enhanced regulatory program to address climate change are unhkely in 2016.
Instead, EPA is the pnmary vehicle for GHG regulation 1n ‘the near future, especially for coal-fired EGUs. The US'Supreme Court’s decision to stay the Clean

Power Plan does put mto question the viability of the rule, but EPA is encouraging states to continue to develop plans for compliance even during the stay.
In addition, while there are legislative proposals to limit or block implementation of the Clean Power Plan, enactment of such legislation appears unlikely.-
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State and Regional Activity

Pursuant to New Mexico law, each utility must submit an IRP to the NMPRC every three years to evaluate renewable energy, energy efficiency, load
management, distributed generation, and conventional supply-side rcsources on a consistent and comparable basis. The IRP is required to takc into
consideration nsk and uncertainty of fuel supply, price volatility, and costs of anticipated environmental regulations when evaluating resource options to
meet supply needs of the utility’s customers. The NMPRC requires that New Mexico utilities factor a standardized cost of carbon emissions into therr IRPs
using prices ranging between $8 and $40 per metric ton of CO2 emitted and escalating these costs by 2.5% per year Under the NMPRC order, each utility
must analyze these standardized prices as projected operating costs. Reflecting the developing nature of this issue, the NMPRC order states that these prices
may be changed 1n the future to account for additional information or changed circumstances. Although these prices may not reflect the costs that ultimately
will be ncurred, PNM 1s required to use these prices for purposes of its IRP PNM s IRP filed with the NMPRC on July 1, 2014 showed that consideration of
carbon emissions costs impacted the projected in-service dates of some of the tdentified resources. PNM has begun 1ts process for the 2017 IRP that 1s to be
filed by July 1,2017.

In the past, New Mexico adopted regulations that would directly limit GHG from larger sources, including EGUs, through a regional GHG cap and
trade program. Although these rules have been repealed, PNM cannot rule out future state legislative or regulatory initiatives to regulate GHG

On August 2, 2012, thirty-three New Mexico organizations representing public health, business, environmental, consumers, Native American, and
other interested parties filed a petition for rulemaking with the NMPRC The petition asked the NMPRC to 1ssue a NOPR regarding the implementation of an
Optional Clean Energy Standard for electric utilities located in New Mexico The proposed standard would have utilities that elect to participate reduce therr
€O emissions by 3% per year Utilities that opt into the program would be assured recovery of their reasonable compliance costs. On October 4, 2012, the
NMPRC held a workshop to discuss the proposed standard and whether it has authorty to proceed with the NOPR. On August 28, 2013, the petitioners
amended the August 2, 2012 petition and requested that the NMPRC issue a NOPR to implement a “Carbon Risk Reduction Rule" for electric utilities in
New Mexico. The proposed rule would require affected utilities to demonstrate a 3% per year CO; emission reduction from a three-year average baseline
period between 2005 and 2012. The proposed rule would use a credit system that provides credits for electricity production based on how much less than one
metric ton of CO; per MWh the utility emuts. Credits would be retired such that 3% per year reductions are achieved from the baseline year until 2035 unless
a participating utility elects to terminate the program at the cnd of 2023. Credits would not expire and could be banked An advisory committee of interested
stakeholders would monitor the program. In addition, utilities would be allowed to satisfy their obligations by funding NMPRC approved energy efficiency
programs. There has been no further action on this matter at the NMPRC.

International Accords

The United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (“UNFCCC™) 1s an intemational environmental treaty that was negotiated at the
1992 United Nations Conference on Environment and Development (informally known as the Earth Summut) and entered into force in March 1994. The
objective of the treaty 15 to “stabilize greenhouse gas concentrations 1n the atmosphere at a level that would prevent dangerous anthropogenic interference
with the climate system.” Parties to the UNFCCC, including the United States, have been meeting annually mn Conferences of the Parties (*COP”) to assess
progress in meeting the objectives of the UNFCCC. This assessment process led to the negotiation of the Kyoto Protocol in the mid-1990s The Protocol,
which was agreed to m 1997 and established legally binding obligations for developed countries to reduce their GHG, was never ratified by the United
States. PNM monitors the proceedings of the UNFCCC, including the annual COP meetings, to determine potential impacts to its business activities At the
COP meeting 1n 2011, participating nations, including the United States, agreed to negotiate by 2015 an international agreement involving commitments by
all nations to begin reducing carbon emissions by 2020. On December 12, 2015, the Panis Agreement was finalized during the 2015 COP. The agreement,
which was agreed to by more than 190 nations, requires that countries submit Nationally Determined Contributions (“NDCs”). NDCs reflect national targets
and actions that arise out of national policies, and elements relating to oversight, guidance and coordination of actions to reduce emissions by all countries
In November 2014, President Obama announced the United States’ commitment to reduce GHG, on an economy-wide basis, by 26%-28% from 2005 levels
by the year 2025. The United States NDC is part of an overall effort by the Obama Admimistration to have the United States achieve economy-wide
reductions of around 80% by 2050. As part of the process for developing the new global climate agreement, the United States set forth this reduction
commitment in its intended NDC. As part of the Paris Agreement, initial NDCs have been submitted by 189 nations, including the United States and the
European Union. The Pans Agreement will enter into force when at least 55 countries, representing at least 55 percent of total global GHG, have ratified or
acceded to it. To date, the Paris Agreement has been ratified by 75 countries representing more than 58% of global GHG and, as a result, will enter into force
on November 4, 2016. PNM will continue to monitor the United States’ participation in intemational accords The Obama admunistration’s GHG reduction
target for the electnc utility industry 1s a key
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element of 1ts NDC and 1s based on EPA’s final GHG regulations for new, existing, and modified and reconstructed sources. With the stay of the Clean Power
Plan that covers existing sources, 1t is uncertain how the Obama admunistration plans to meet 1ts NDC under the Pans Agreement PNM believes that .
implementation of the BART plan for SIGS (Note 11) shoiild provide a significant step towards compliance with the Clean Power Plan, should it prevail, or
other GHG reduction requirements. N

s

Assessment of Legislative/Regulatory Impacts

The Company has assessed, and continues to assess, the impacts of climate change legislation or regulation on its business. This assessment is
ongoing and future changes arising out of the legislative or regulatory process could impact the assessment significantly PNM'’s assessment includes
assumptions regarding specific GHG limits; the timing of implementation of these limits; the possibility of a market-based trading program, mcluding the
associated costs and the availability of emission credits or allowances; the development of emission reduction and/or renewable energy technologies, and
provisions for cost containment. Moreover, the assessment assumes various market reactions such as the price of coal and gas and regional plant economics.
These assumptions are, at best, preliminary and speculative. However, based upon these assumptions, the enactment of climate change legislation or
regulation could, among other things, result in significant compliance costs, including large capital expenditures by PNM, and could jeopardize the
economic viability of certain generating facilities. See Note 11. In turn, these consequences could lead to increased costs to customers and affect results of
operations, cash flows, and financial condition 1f the incurred costs' are not fully recovered through regulated rates. Higher rates could also contribute to
reduced usage of electnicity. PNM's assessment process 1s too preliminary and speculative at this time for a meaningful prediction 6fﬁnan01§1 1mpact.

Transmission Issues

At any given time, FERC has various notices of inquiry and rulemaking dockets related to transmission issues pending. Such actions may lead to
changes in FERC administrative rules or ratemakmg policy, but have no time frame 1n which action must be taken or a docket closed with no further action.
Further, such notices and rulemaking dockets do not apply stnctly to PNM, but will have industry-wide effects in that they will apply to all FERC-regulated
entities. PNM monitors and often submits comments taking a position 1n such notices and rulemaking dockets or may join in larger group responses. PNM
often cannot determine the full impact of a proposed rule and policy change until the final determination 1s made by FERC and PNM is unable to predict the
outcome of these matters.

On November 24, 2009, FERC 1ssued Order 729 approving two Modeling, Data, and Analysis Reliability Standards (“Rehablllty Standards”)
submitted by NERC — MOD-001-1 (Available Transmission System Capability) and MOD-029-1 (Rated System Path Methodology). Both MOD-001-1 and
MOD-029-1 require a consistent approach, provided for in'the Reliability Standards, to measuring the total transmission capablllty (“TTC?) of a transnussion
path. The TTC level established using the two Reliability Standards could result in a reduction in the available transmussion capacity currently used by PNM
to deliver generation resources necessary for its jurisdictional load and for fulfilling 1ts obligations to third-party users of the PNM transmission system

During the first quarter of 2011, at the request of PNM and other southwestern utilities, NERC advised all transmission owners and transmission
service providers that the implementation of portions of the MOD-029 methodology for “Flow Limited” paths has been delayed until such time as a
modification to the standard can be developed that will mitigate the technical concems identified by the transmission owners'and transmission service
providers. PNM and other western utilities filed a Standards Action Request with NERC in the second quarter of 2012.

NERC initiated an informal development process to address directives in Order 729 to modify certain aspects of the MOD standards, including MOD-
001 and MOD-029. The modifications to this standard would retire MOD-029 and require each transmission operator to determine and develop methodology
for TTC values for MOD-001.

A final ballot for MOD-001-2 concluded on December 20, 2013 and received sufficient affirmative votes for approval. On February 10, 2014, NERC
filed with FERC a petition for approval of MOD-001-2 and retirement of reliability standards MOD-001-1a, MOD-004-1, MOD-008-1, MOD-028-2, MOD-
029-1a, and MOD-030-2. On June 19, 2014, FERC issued a NOPR to approve a new reliability standard. The MOD-001-2 standard will become effective on
the first day of the calendar quarter that 1s 18 months after the date the standard is approved by FERC. MOD-001-2 will replace multiple existing reliability
standards and will remove the risk of reduced TTC for PNM and other western utilities.

1

“109

v

. g e el * . s o el e g i

woseree TEAAS NIV SEXICO POWEIE J0 0N Cowober 20, 200k Pogerat ey aey® 511.1 1 WReear)!
The mfe. e won wontaned hare nma. ~0t ve copierd, dapted or thelribul <0 #r.d is not warrants le aceurate, vomplers or tmaly The user assuas olty sies fages or losses 8nsryg ism any use of s informst.on,
FALARE 10 P sxian! suc damagas o0 1037 car et ae Dited e exntutied by applicable law Past by al p erteemames ss 0o guarantse of future results



Table of Contents
Financial Reform Legislation

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (“Dodd-Frank Reform Act”), enacted 1n July 2010, includes provistons that will
require certain over-the-counter denvatives, or swaps, to be centrally cleared and executed through an exchange or other approved trading facility It also
includes provistons related to swap transaction reporting and record keeping and may impose margin requirements on swaps that are not centrally cleared.
The United States Commodity Futures Trading Commussion (“CFTC”) has published final rules defining several key terms related to the act and has set
compliance dates for vanous types of market participants The Dodd-Frank Reform Act provides exemptions from certain requirements, including an
exception to the mandatory cleating and swap facility execution requirements for commercial end-users that use swaps to hedge or mitigate commercial nsk

PNM has elected the end-user exception to the mandatory cleanng requirement. PNM expects to be 1 compliance with the Dodd-Frank Reform Act and
related rules within the time frames required by the CFTC. However, as a result of implementing and complying with the Dodd-Frank Reform Act and related
rules, PNM's swap activities could be subject to increased costs, including from higher margin requirements At this time, PNM cannot predict the ultimate
mpact the Dodd-Frank Reform Act may have on PNM’s financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, or iquidity.

Other Matters

See Notes 11 and 12 herein and Notes 16 and 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K for a
discussion of commitments and contingencies and rate and regulatory matters. See Note 1 for a discussion of accounting pronouncements that have been
1ssued, but are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Company.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with GAAP requires Company management to select and apply accounting policies that best
provide the framework to report the results of operations and financial position for PNMR, PNM, and TNMP. The selection and application of those policics
requires management to make difficult, subjective, and/or complex judgments conceming reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
penod and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. As a result, there exists the likelihood that materially different
amounts would be reported under different conditions or using different assumptions.

As of September 30, 2016, there have been no significant changes with regard to the critical accounting policies disclosed in PNMR's, PNMs, and
TNMP’s 2015 Annual Reports on Forms 10-K. The policies disclosed included unbilled revenues, regulatory accounting, impairments, decommussioning and
reclamation costs, pension and other postretirement benefits, accounting for contingencies, income taxes, and market risk.

MD&A FOR PNM
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
PNM operates in only one reportable segment, as presented above 1n Results of Operations for PNMR.
MD&A FOR TNMP
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
TNMP operates 1n only one reportable segment, as presented above in Results of Operations for PNMR.
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements made in this filing that relate to futurc events or PNMR’s, PNM’s, or TNMP’s expectations, projections, estumates, intentions, goals,
targets, and strategies are made pursuant to the Pnvate Secunties Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Readers are cautioned that all forward-looking statements
are based upon current expectations and estimates. PNMR, PNM, and TNMP assume no obligation to update this information.

Because actual results may differ matenially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements, PNMR, PNM, and TNMP caution
readers not to place undue reliance on these statements. PNMR's, PNM’s, and TNMP’s business, financial condition, cash flows, and operating results are
influenced by many factors, which are often beyond their control, that can cause actual results to differ from those expressed or implied by the forward-
looking statements. These factors include:
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+  The ability of PNM and TNMP to recover costs and eam allowed: retums in regulated junsdictions, including the 1mpacts of the NMPRC final order

in PNM’s NM 2015 Rate Case and appeals of that order, and the impact on service levels for PNM customers 1f the ultimate decision does not

provide for the recovery of costs of operating and capital expenditures, as well as other impacts of federal or state regulatory and judicial actions

+  The ability of the Company to successfully forecast and manage 1ts operating and capital expenditures, including aligning expenditures with the
revenue levels resulting from the ultimate outcome in PNM’s NM 2015 Rate Case, including appeals, and supporting forecasts utilized in future test
year rate proceedings

¢ The rmpacts on the electricity usage of customers and consumers due to performance of state, regional, and national economies, mandatory energy
efficiency measures, weather, seasonality, altemative sources ofpower and other changes in supply and demand, mcluding the failure to maintain or .
replace customer contracts on favorable terms

*  The Company’s ability to access.the financial markets, including drsruptrons in the capital or.credit markets actions by ratmgs agencies, and

. fluctuations in 1terest rates, including any negatrve impacts that could result from the ultimate outcome in PNM s NM 2015 Rate Case, including

appeals " ;
» * The potential unavailability of cash from PNMR’s subsidianes due to regulatory, statutory, or contractual restrictions or subsidiary eamings or cash
. flows ;
*  Uncertainty surrounding counterparty credit risk, mcludmg financial support provided to facihitate the new coal supply and ownership restructuring
at SIGS

+  Uncertainty surrounding the status of PNM’s participation in Jomtly-owned generation projects, including the scheduled expiration of the
operational and fuel supply agreements for SJGS, as well as the 2018 requrred NMPRC ﬂlmg to determine the extéht to which SJGS should continue

N serving PNM’s retail customers beyond mid-2022 , 4
+  Sfate and federal regulation or legislation relating o envrronmental matters, the resultant costs of complrance and other.impacts on the operations
and economic viability of PNM’s generating plants Loy 5

+  Physical and operational risks related to climate change and potential financial risks resulting from climate change litigation and legislative and
regulatory efforts to limit GHG, including the Clean Power Plan <

+ ¢ Uncertainty regarding the requirements and related costs of decommissioning power plants and reclamanon of coal mines supplying certain power

plants, as well as the ability to recover those costs from customers, including the potential impacts of the final order 1n the NM 2015 Rate Case and
appeals of that order .
The performance of generating units, transmission systems, and distribution systems, which could be negatively affected by operational 1ssues, fuel

- quality, unplanned outages, extreni¢ weather conditions, terrorism, cybersecunty breaches, and other catastrophic events

»  Employee workforce factors, including cost control efforts and issues arising out of collective bargaining agreements and labor negotiations with
union employees

*  Varability ofpnces and volatility and hiquidity 1n the wholesale powér and natural gas markets

+  Changes in price and availability of fuel and water supplies, including the ability of the mines supplying coal to PNM’s coal-fired generating units
and the companies involved in supplying nuclear fuel to provide adequate quantities of fuel

+  The nsksassociated with completion of generation, transmission, distribution; and other projects by

«  State and federal regulatory, legislative, and ‘judicial decisions and actions on ratemaking, tax, and other matters

*  Regulatory, financial, and operational risks inherent i the operation of nuclear facilities, including spent fuel disposal untertainties

+  The nsk that FERC rulemakings may negatively impact the operation of PNM’s transmission system ‘

*  The impacts of decreases in the values of marketable securities maintained in trusts to provide for decommlssronmg, reclamation, pcnsron benefits, .
and other postretirement benefits, including potential increased volatility fesulting from the recent vote by the United Kingdom to exit from the -
Eutopean Union 5

+  The effectiveness of risk management regarding commodity transactions and counterparty nsk’

*  The outcome of legal proceedings, including the extent of insurance coverage

+ Changes'in appllcable accountmg principles or policies N .

. Ty ¥ )
Any matenal changes to risk factors occurring after the filing of PNMRs, PNM s, and TNMP’s 2015 Annual Reports on Form 10-K are disclosed in-

Item 1A, Risk Factors, in Part Il of this Form 10-Q.*

For mformatlon about the risks associated wrth the use of denvatrve fmancral Instruments, see Item 3. “Quantitative and Qualrtatlve Dlsclosures

About Market Risk.” . .
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SECURITIES ACT DISCLAIMER

Certain securities described or cross-referenced 1n this report have not been registered under the Securnities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state
secunties laws and may not be reoffered or sold 1n the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the
Securittes Act of 1933 and applicable state securities laws. This Form 10-Q does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
securnties.

WEBSITES

The PNMR website, www.pnmresources.com, 1s an important source of Company information. New or updated information for public access is
routinely posted. PNMR encourages analysts, investors, and other interested parties to register on the website to automatically recerve Company information
by e-mail. This information includes news releases, notices of webcasts, and filings with the SEC. Participants will not receive information that was not
requested and can unsubscribe at any time

Our Interet addresses are:

. PNMR: www.pnmresources.com
. PNM: www.pnm.com
. TNMP: www.tnmp.com

In addition to the corporate websites, PNM has a website, www.PowerforProgress com, dedicated to showing how it balances delivening reliable power
at affordable prices and protecting the environment. This website is designed to be a resource for the facts about PNM’s operations and support efforts,
including plans for building a sustainable energy future for New Mexico.

The contents of these websites are not a part of this Form 10-Q. The SEC filings of PNMR, PNM, and TNMP, including annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act, are accessible free of charge on the PNMR website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. These
reports are also available 1in print upon request from PNMR free of charge.

Also available on the Company’s website at www.pnmresources.com/corporate-governance.aspx and 1n prnint upon request from any shareholder are

our:
. Corporate Governance Principles
. Code of Ethics (Do the Right Thing — Principles of Business Conduct)
. Charters of the Audit and Ethics Committee, Nominating and Govemance Commuttee, Compensation and Human Resources Commuittee, and

Finance Comnuttee

The Company will post amendments to or waivers from its code of ethics (to the extent applicable to the Company’s executive officers and directors)
on its website ‘

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company manages the scope of its vanous forms of market risk through a comprehensive set of policies and procedures with oversight by senior
level management through the RMC.The Board’s Finance Commuttee sets the risk limit parameters. The RMC has oversight over the risk control
organization. The RMC is assigned responsibility for establishing and enforcing the policies, procedures, and limits and evaluating the nisks inherent 1n
proposed transactions on an enterpnse-wide basis. The RMC’s responsibilities include:

+  Establishing policies regarding nsk exposure levels and activities in each of the business segments

*  Approving the types of derivatives entered into for hedging

*  Reviewing and approving hedging risk activities

«  Establishing policies regarding counterparty exposure and limits

*  Authonzing and delegating transaction limits

»  Reviewing and approving controls and procedures for derivative activities

«  Reviewing and approving models and assumptions used to calculate mark-to-market and market nsk exposure
*  Proposing risk hmits to the Board’s Finance Commuttee for 1ts approval

*  Quarterly reporting to the Board's Audit and Finance Committees on these activities
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To the extent an open position exists, fluctuating commodlty prces, interest rates, equity pnces and economic conditions can impact financial
results and financial position, cither favorably or unfavorably. As a’result, the Company cannot predict With certainty the impact that 1ts tisk management
decisions may have on 1ts businesses, operating resultf or financial position.

Commodity Risk .

Information conceming accounting for denvatives and the nisks assoc1ated with commodity contracts is set forth 1n Note 7, mcludmg a summary of
the fair values of mark-to-market energy related derivative contracts included in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets During the nine months ended
September 30, 2016 and the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had no commodity denvative mstruments designated as cash flow hedging
instruments.

Commodity contracts, other than those that do not meet the definition of a denvative under GAAP and those denvatives designated as normal
purchases and normal sales, are recorded at fair value on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following table details the changes n the net assét
or liability balance sheet position for mark-to-market energy transactions.

s . ’ Nine Months Ended
P ) September 30,
: 2016 2015
Economic Hedges (In thousands)
Sources of fair value gain Eloss): . .
L Net fair valuc at beginning of pertod § 4576 $ 9,546l
Amount realized on contracts delivered during period (1,294) (8,379)
l__Chwangei in fair value (899) 7,1 2’71
Net mark-to-market change recorded in eammgé . (2,193) (1,252) L.
[ Rerehange recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities. *_(168) 235 |
Net fair value at end of period $ 2215 § 8,529

The following table provides the matunty of the net assets (liabilities), giving an ndication of when these mark-to-market amounts will settle and
generate (use) cash. P

(% -

Fair Value of Mark-to-Market Instruments at September 30,2016 -

. 5 W b Settlement Dates .

. , 2016 2017 ¢
, ) ' (In thousands) " .
Economic hedges

| Prices actively quoted $ — 3 —
Prices provided by other extemal
“sources’ - 271) 2,486
Prices based 'on models and other
—valuations; S .
Total : $- (271) § 2486 | .

PNM measures the market nsk of 1ts long-term contracts and wholesale activities usmg 2 Monfe Carlo VaR simulation model to report the p0551ble
loss n value from price movements. VaR is not a measure of the potential accounting mark-to-market loss. The quantitative nsk information is limited by the
parameters established in creating the model. The Monte Carlo VaR methodology employs the following cntical parameters: historical volatility estimates,
market values of all contractual commitments, a three-day holding period, seasonally adjusted and cross-commodlty correlation estimates, and a 95%
confidence level. The instruments being evaluated may trigger a potential loss n excess of calculated amounts if changes in commodity prices exceed the

~confidence level of the model used.

PNM measures VaR for the positions in its wholesale portfolio (not covered by the FPPAC). For the nine months ended September 30, 2016, the high,
low, and average VaR amounts were $1.3 million, $0.3 million, and $0.6 million For the year ended December 31, 2015, the high, low, and average VaR
amounts were $2.6 million, $0.5 million, and $1 4 million. At September 30, 2016 and December 31,2015, the VaR amounts for the PNM wholesale portfolio
were $0.3 million and $1.2 nmullion N
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The VaR represents an estimate of the potential gains or losses that could be recognized on the Company’s portfolios, subject to market nsk, given
current volatility in the market, and 1s not necessarily indicative of actual results that may occur, since actual future gains and losses will differ from those
estimated. Actual gains and losses may differ due to actual fluctuations 1n market prices, operating exposures, and the timing thereof, as well as changes to
the underlying portfolios dunng the year VaR limits were not exceeded during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 or the year ended December 31,
2015.

Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to credit nisk from 1ts retail and wholesale customers, as well as the counterparties to dervative instruments. The Company
conducts counterparty risk analysis across business segments and uses a credit management process to assess the financial conditions of counterparties The
following table provides information related to credit exposure by the credit worthiness (credit rating) and concentration of credit risk for counterparties to
denvative transactions all of which will mature 1n less than two years.

Schedule of Credit Risk Exposure

September 30,2016
Number of  Net Exposure
Credit Risk Counter- of Counter-
Rating (1 Exposure) parties>10% parties>10%

(Dollars in thousands)

External ratings.

Investment grade $ 929 — $ —
Non-investment grade 125 — —
Split rating 5
Internal ratings:
Investment grade 5,734 1 5.675
Non-investment grade 7 — —
Total $ 6,800 $ 5,675

(1) The rating “Investment Grade” is for counterparties, or a guarantor, with a minimum S&P rating of BBB- or Moody’s rating of Baa3. The category
“Internal Ratings — Investment Grade” includes those counterparties that are intemally rated as investment grade 1n accordance with the
guidelines established in the Company’s credit policy.

2y The Credit Risk Exposure is the gross credit exposure, including long-term contracts (other than firm-requirements wholesale customers), forward
sales, and short-term sales. The exposure captures the amounts from receivables/payables for realized transactions, delivered and unbilled
revenues, and mark-to-market gains/losses. Gross exposures can be offset according to legally enforceable netting arrangements, but are not
reduced by posted credit collateral. At September 30, 2016, PNMR held $0.1 million of cash collateral to offset its credit exposure.

Net credit nisk for the Company’s largest counterparty as of September 30, 2016 was $5.7 million.

As discussed in Note 11, PNMR’s subsidiary, NM Capaital, entered 1nto the Westmoreland Loan and PNMR has arranged for letters of credit to be
1ssued under the PNMR Revolving Credit Facility to support the acquisition of SJCC by WSJ, a subsidiary of Westmoreland, PNMR is exposed to credt risk
under these arrangements in the event of default by WSJ. As of October 21, 2016, remaining required principal payments under the Westmoreland Loan are
$15.0 mitllion 1n 2016, $38.4 million 1n 2017, $3.6 million 1n 2018, $8.6 million 1n 2019, $23.3 mullion in 2020, and $21.1 million 1n 2021. As of October
21,2016, $17.3 million was held in a restnicted bank account that will be used solely to make the November 1, 2016 scheduled principal payment of $15.0
million and interest on the Westmoreland Loan. In addition, the Westmoreland Loan requires that all cash flows of WSJ, in excess of normal operating
expenses, capital additions, and operating reserves, be utilized for principal and interest payments under the loan until 1t is fully repaid. The Westmoreland
Loan is secured by the assets of and the equity interests in SJICC. In the event of a default by WSJ, NM Capital would have the ability to take over the mining
operations, the value of which PNMR believes approximates the amount outstanding under the Westmoreland Loan Furthermore, PNMR considers the
possibility of loss under the letter of credit to be remote as discussed 1n Note 5. Accordingly, PNMR does consider 1ts credit risk under these arrangements to
be matenal.
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Interest Rate Risk :, ! s .

The mayority of the Company’s long-term debt 15 fixed-rate debt and does not expose eamings to a major risk of loss due t6 adverse changes 1n market
nterest rates. However, the fair value of PNMR’s consolidated long-term debt instruments would 1ncrease by 1.9%, or $47.6 mullion, 1f interest rates were to
deéline by 50 basis points from their levels at September 30,2016. In general, an increase n fair value would impact eamings and cash flows to the extent not
recoverable in rates if all or a portion of debt instruments were acquired 1n the' open market prior to their maturity. At October 21, 2016, PNMR, PNM, and
TNMP had short-term debt outstanding of $163.1 million, $24.0 million, and none under their revolving credit facilities, which allow for a maximum
aggregate borrowing capacity of $300.0 million for PNMR, $400 0 million for PNM, and $75.0 million for TNMP PNM also had borrowings of $6.0 million
under the $50.0 million PNM New Mexico Credit Facility at October 21, 2016. The revolving credit facilities, the PNM New Mexico Credit Facility, the
$175.0 million PNM 2016 Term Loan Agreement, the $150.0 million PNMR Term Loan Agreement the $150.0 million PNMR 2015 Term Loan Agreement,
and the $125.0 million BTMU Term Loan Agreement bear interest at variable rates. On October 21, 2016, interest rates on borrowings averaged 1.78% for the
PNMR Revolving Credit Facility, 1.43% for the PNMR 2015 Term Loan Agreement, 1 38% for the PNMR Term Loan Agreement, 3.51% for the BTMU Term
Loan Agreement, 1.15% for the PNM 2016 Term Loan Agreement, 1'66% for the PNM Revolving Credit Facility, and 1.66% for the PNM New Mexico Credit
Facility. The Company 1s exposed to interest rate risk to the extent of future increases in variable interest rates.

The mvestments held by PNM m trusts for decommussioning and reclamation had an estimated fair value of $271.0 mullion at September 30, 2016, of
which 46.6% were fixed-rate debt securities that subject PNM to risk of loss of fair value with movements 1 market interest rates If interest rates were to
increase by 50 basis points from their levels at September 30, 2016, the decrease 1n the fair value of the fixed-rate securities would be 3.5%, or $4.4 million

PNM does not directly recover or return through rates any losses or gains on the secunties, including equity investments discussed below, in the trusts
for decommissioning and reclamation. However, the overall performance of these trusts does enter into the periodic determinations of expense and funding
levels, which are factored into the rate making process to the extent applicable to regulated operations. However, as descnibed 1n Note 12, the NMPRC has
ruled that PNM would not be able to include future contributions made by PNM for decommissioning of PVNGS, to the extent apphcable to capacity
previously leased by PNM, in rates charged to retail customers. PNM has appealed the NMPRC's ruling to the NM Supreme Court. PNM is at risk for
shortfalls in funding of obligations due to 1nvestment losses, including those from the equity markét nsks discussed below and any negative impact resulting

from the United Kingdom’s decision to exit the European Union to the extent not ultimately rccovered through rates charged to customers.
[l 5 L

Equity Market Risk s - '

The investments held by PNM 1n trusts for decommissioning and ‘reclamation include certain equity securities at September 30,2016 These equity
securities expose PNM: to losses in fair value should the market values of the underlying secunities decline. Equity securities compnsed 51.6% of the
secunties held by the trusts as of September 30, 2016. A hypothetical 10% decrease 1n equity prices would reduce thc falr values 6f these funds by $14.0
million.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 3 '

¢ .
Evaluation of disclosure'controls.and procedures o
/

As of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report, each of PNMR, PNM, and TNMP conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of its management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a- -15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Sccurities Exchange Act 0of 1934). Based upon this evaluation,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Fmanmal Officer of each of PNMR, PNM, and TNMP concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures are
effective. ;

i

Changes in internal controls

There have been no changes 1n each of PNMR’s, PNM’s, and TNMP’s intemal control over financial reporting (as such term 1s defined 1n Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934) during the quarter ended September 30,2016 that have matenally affected, or are reasonably
likely to matenally affect, each of PNMR’s, PNM's, and TNMP’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
See Notes 11 and 12 for information related to the following matters, for PNMR, PNM, and TNMP, incorporated in this item by reference.
Note 11

The Clean Air Act — Regional Haze ~ SIGS
The Clean Air Act — Regional Haze — Four Corners — Four Comers Federal Agency Lawsuit
Four Comers Coal Mine

WEG v. OSM NEPA Lawsuit

Navajo Nation Environmental Issues

Santa Fe Generating Station

Continuous Highwall Mining Royalty Rate
Four Comers Severance Tax Assessment
PVNGS Water Supply Litigation

San Juan River Adjudication
Rights-of-Way Matter

Navajo Nation Allottee Matters

Note 12

+  PNM — New Mexico General Rate Case

+«  PNM — Renewable Portfolio Standard

¢ PNM — Renewable Energy Rider

¢ PNM — Energy Efficiency and Load Management

*  PNM - Integrated Resource Plan

¢« PNM - San Juan Generating Station Units 2 and 3 Retirement

*  PNM - Application for Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
«  PNM - Advanced Metering Infrastructure Application

+  PNM - Facebook Data Center Project

+  PNM - Formula Transmussion Rate Case

¢ PNM - Firm-Requirements Wholesale Customers — Navopache Electric Cooperative, Inc.
*  TNMP - Advanced Meter System Deployment

*  TNMP - Transmission Cost of Service Rates

TNMP — Energy Efficiency

See also Climate Change Issues under Other Issues Facing the Company in MD&A. The third paragraph under State and Regional Activity is
ncorporated in this item by reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

As of the date of this report, there have been no material changes with regard to the Risk Factors disclosed in PNMR's, PNM’s, and TNMP’s Annual
Reports on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2015.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

: 3.1 PNMR  Aticles of Incorporation of PNMR, as amended to date (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 1 to
PNMR’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 21, 2008) :
! 32 PNM Restated Articles of Incorporation of PNM, as amended through May 31, 2002 (incorporated by
‘ reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to PNM’s Quarterly Report'on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2002)
33 TNMP Articles of Incorporation of TNMP, as amended through July 7, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3 1 2 to TNMP’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,2005)
34 PNMR Bylaws of PNMR, with all amendments to and including February 26, 2015 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to PNMR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2014)
3.5 PNM Bylaws of PNM, with all amendments to and including May 31, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhlblt 3.1.2 to PNM’s Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30,2002)
3.6 ,]INMP Bylaws of TNMP, with all amendments to and including June 18, 2013 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3 6 to TNMP’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 20,2013)
12.1 PNMR Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges
12.2 PNM Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges
123 TNMP Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges
31.1 PNMR Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002
312 - PNMR Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuafit to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0£2002
313 PNM Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02002
314 PNM Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0£2002
315 f TNMP Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f 2002
31.6 TNMP Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002
321 PNMR Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0£2002

322 PNM Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Sectlon 906 of the
Sarbanies-Oxley Act 0£2002"

323 TNMP Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Scction 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002

101.INS ‘PNMR, -~ XBRL Instance Document
PNM, and
TNMP

101.8CH PNMR, XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
PNM, and
TNMP

101.CAL  PNMR, ¢ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
PNM, and
TNMP

101 DEF | PNMR, XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

PNM, and
TNMP

101.LAB PNMR, XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

PNM, and
; TNMP
101.PRE PNMR, XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
PNM, and )
TNMP
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, the registrants have duly caused this report to be signed on their behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authonzed.

PNM RESOURCES, INC.
PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO
TEXAS-NEW MEXICO POWER COMPANY

(Registrants)

Date: October 28,2016 /s/ Joseph D. Tarry
Joseph D. Tarry

Vice President, Corporate Controller, and
Chief Information Officer

(Officer duly authornized to sign this report)
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Exhibit 12 1
PNM RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Ratio of Eamnings to Fixed Charges
(In thousands, except rat1o)

Nine Months Ended Year Ended December 31,
September 30,2016 2015 2014 R 2013 2012 2011
Fixed charges, as defined by the Securities and Exchange B )
Commussion:
Interest expensed and capitalized $ 97,970 $117,932 $117337 $118880 $125379 $122,998
Amortization of debt premium, discount, and expenses 2,839 3,575 4,194 3.716 4,023 3,695
Estimated nterest factor of lease rental charges 2,094 3,298 4,686 5,847 5,585 6,665
Preferred dividend requirements of subsidiary . 588 784 809 800 769 864
Total Fixed Charges $ 103,491 $125,589 $127,026 $129,243 $135,756 § 134,222
Eamings,"as defined by the Securties and Exchange Commission:
Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes and non-
controlling interest __— - 8 153,567 $ 46,153 $200,647 $175,069, $175,035 § 321,469
Fixed chatges as above 103,491 125,589 127,026 129,243 135,756 134,222
Interest capitalized (6,045) (9.753) (6,256) (5.209) (5432) (2,697)
Non-controlling interest in eamings of Valencia . (11,037)  (14910) (14,127)  (14.521) (14,050) (14,047)
Preferred dividend requirements of substdiary (588) (784) (809) (800) (769) (864)
Eamings Available for Fixed Charges $ © 239388 $146,295 $306,481 $283,782 $290,540 $ 438,083
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges S 2311 1.16 2 241 3 2203 2.14 | 326 4

1 Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and non-controlling interest for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 includes a pre-tax
loss of $17.2 million due to the write-off of regulatory disallowances and restructunng costs at PNM If that loss was excluded, the Ratto of Eamings to
Fixed Charges would have been 2.48. -

[N}

Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes and non-'control'ling interest for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes a pre-tax loss of
$167.5 million due to the write-off of regulatory disallowances and Testructuring costs at PNM. If that loss was excluded, the Ratio of Eamings to Fixed
Charges would have been 2.50 for 2015. ‘

w

Eamings from continiung operations before income taxes and non-controlling interest for the years ended December 31, 2014 and Décember 31, 2013
include pre-tax losscs of $1.1 mullion and $12 2 million due to the wnite-off of regulatory disallowances at PNM. If those losses were excluded, the Ratio of
Eamings to Fixed Charges would have been 2 42 for 2014 and 2.29 for 2013.

IS

Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes and non-controlling mterest for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes pre-tax losses of
$21.4 million due to the write~off of regulatory disallowances at PNM and TNMP. If that loss was excluded, the Ratio of Earrings to Fixed Charges would
have been 3 42. In addition, 2011 includes a pre-tax gain on the sale of First Choice of $174.9 million. If that gain was also excluded. the Ratio of Eamings
to Fixed Charges would have been 1.96. ’ ’
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Exhibit 12.2
PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO
Ratio of Eamnings to Fixed Charges
(In thousands, except ratio)

Nine Months
Ended Year Ended December 31,
September 30,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Fixed charges, as defined by the Secunties and
Exchange Commission.
Interest expensed and capitalized $ 68,094  § 84,695 $ 79,834 $ 79769 $ 82864 $ 75,217
Amortization of debt premium, discount and
expenses 1,741 1,978 1,944 1,879 1,818 1,325
Estimated interest factor of lease rental charges 978 1.532 2,541 3,732 3,743 4,139

Total Fixed Charges $ 70,813 $ 88,205 $ 84319 $ 85,380 $ 88,425 $ 80,681
Eamings, as defined by the Securities and
Exchange Commission:
Eamings (loss) from continuing operations before .

income taxes and non-controlling interest $ 104,473 $(13,082) $154,086 $151,480 $156,314 $105,965
Fixed charges as above 70,813 88.205 84,319 85,380 88,425 80,681
Non-controlling interest in eamings of Valencia (11,037) (14910) (14,127) (14,521) (14,050) (14,047)
Interest capitalized 4,651) (8,530) (5,211) 4,420) 4,314) (1,761)
Eamings Available for Fixed Charges $ 159,598 $ 51,683 $219,067 $217919 $226,375 $170.838
Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges 2251 0.59 2 2,60 3 2.55 4 2.56 212 s

2

w

'S

©»

Eamnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and non-controlling interest for the nine months ended September 30,
2016 includes a pre-tax loss of $17.2 mullion due to the wnte-off of regulatory disallowances and restructuring costs. If that loss was
excluded, the Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges would have been 2.50.

The shortfall in eamings available for fixed charges to achieve a ratio of earnings to fixed charges of 1.00 amounted to $36.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015. Eamings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes includes a pre-tax loss of $167 5
million due to the wnite-off of regulatory disallowances and restructuring costs. If that loss was excluded, the Ratio of Earnings to Fixed
Charges would have been 2.48 for 2015

Eamings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and non-controlling interest for the year ended December 31, 2014
includes a pre-tax loss of $1.1 million due to the write-off of regulatory disallowances. If that loss was excluded, the Ratio of Earnings to
Fixed Charges would have been 2.61 for 2014.

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and non-controlling interest for the year ended December 31, 2013
includes a pre-tax loss of $12.2 mullion due to the wnite-off of regulatory disallowances If that loss was excluded, the Ratio of Earnings to
Fixed Charges would have been 2.70 for2013.

Eamings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and non-controlling interest for the year ended December 31, 2011

includes a pre-tax loss $17.5 million due to the write-off of regulatory disallowances. If that loss was excluded, the Ratio of Earnings to
Fixed Charges would have been 2.33.
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Exhibit 12.3
TEXAS-NEW MEXICO POWER COMPANY
Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges
(In thousands, except ratio)

Nine Months N
Ended Year Ended December 31,
September 30, - .
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Fixed charges, as defined by the Sccurities and Exchange
Commission:
Interest expensed and capitalized $ 20,806 $25875 ‘$24941 $24481 $26,233 $27.914
Amortization of debt premium, discount and expenses 779 1,100 1,195 1,159 1.4{93 1,679
Estimated intetest factor of lease rental charges 894 1,229 1,311 1,241 956 1,202
? u .
Total Fixed Charges $ 22,479 $28204 $27,447 $26,881 ' $28.682  $30,795

Eamings, as defined by the Secunties and Exchange
Commission

v

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes $ -+ 50,277 $66,088 $60,330 $46,711 $42,099 $36,138

Fixed charges as qbove . 22,479 28,204 27,447 26,881 28,682 30,795
Interest capitalized - (539) (593) 609) . (361) (706) (593)
Eamings Available for Fixed Charges $ 72217 $93,699 $87,168 $73,231 $70,075 $6é,340
\ v -
. , '
Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges 3.21 3.32 3.18 272 2.44 215 ¢

3
-

| Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes a pre-tax loss of $3.9
million due to the wnite-off of regulatory disallowances. If that loss was excluded, the Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges would have
been 2.28 ' .

i
\

TUTNCU WG Qewaber 78, 200 Pevesrzd b Noe gt O 123.: Bengars ™

FAS Ny

N ety My 158 b copod, atdapind or distrbuted ared 18 ned wanaolert to bo sunur we complets or tpely Tne e 5sumes off st for . famages ar 'osses wilsmg Hiom any uoy o} Hbs mfommrtion,
teatent SUCH BaLIIGRS O '©357° Lannof be imited or excluged By applicable law Past fivanoat purfc tuancs (s 00 guarantes of 1ol e resuits -



PNM Resources
414 Silver Ave. SW
Albuquerque, NM 87102-3289

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Patnicia K. Collawn, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of PNM Resources, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1 light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report,

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all matenal respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the pertods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

Date:

a)

b}

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidianes, 1s made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared:

Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred duning the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (each registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matcnial weaknesses 1n the design or operation of intemal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information, and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal
control over financial reporting.

October 28,2016 By /s/Patricia K. Collawn

Patricia K. Collawn
President and Chief Executive Officer
PNM Resources, Inc
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PNM Resources

414 Silver Ave. SW

Albuquerque, NM 87102-3289

~EXHIBIT 312
CERTIFICATION ~

I, Charles N. Eldréd, certify that- C .

1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of PNM Resources, Inc.; ., . :

2 Based on my knowledge, this report #does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to* state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1n light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements; and other financial information included in this Jeport, fairly” present 1n. all material ‘respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

b1

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsxble for establishing and maintaining disclosute controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
. Aét Rules.13a-15(e) and 15d- 15(e)) and intemnal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have

b

Date:

Source

a)

‘b)

c)

d)

1

Designed such diséldsure controls and pfocedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts consolidated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; + * ’ .

[

Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such interal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, t6 provide' reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation’of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluatéd the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 6ur conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procédures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that ¢écurred during the reglstrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (each registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has faterially affected, or is reasonably likely to

LA

materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and '

-

The registrant’s other cemfymg officer and I have disclosed;based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the’ equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses 1n the design -or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to'record, process, summarize and feport financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or othér employees who haVe a significant ‘role 1n the registrant’s nternal
control over financial reporting.

¥

October 28,2016 ' ’ By: /s/ Charles N. Eldred
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Charles N, Eldred

. Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
PNM Resources, Inc.
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Public Service Company of New Mexico
414 Silver Ave SW
Albuquerque, NM 87102-3289

EXHIBIT 31.3
CERTIFICATION

I, Patricia K Collawn, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Public Service Company of New Mexico:

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1n light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined 1n Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

Date

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts consolidated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented 1n this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation, and

Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occutred durnng the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (each registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role 1n the registrant’s intermnal
control over financial reporting.

October 28,2016 By: /s/ Patricia K. Collawn

Patricia K. Collawn
President and Chief Executive Officer
Public Service Company of New Mexico
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Public Service Company of New Mexico
414 Silver Ave. SW
Albuquerque, NM 87102-3289

EXHIBIT 314
CERTIFICATION

I, Charles N. Eldred, cgnify that: .

1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 1o-d of Public Service Company of New Mexico;

2. Based on'my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not musleading with'respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included 1n this report, fairly present in all matenal respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of;'and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and 1nternal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and -have:

a)

b)

c)

d)

. 5. The

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures; or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by others within those
cntities, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared;

De51gned such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provxde reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of ﬁnam:lal statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s dlsclosure controls and. procedures and’ presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed 1n this report any change 1n the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant s most recent
fiscal quarter (each registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has* matenally affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s interal control over financial reportmg, and '

registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

* registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s boird of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses 1n the design’ or operation of nternal controls over financial reporting which are
“ reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a 51gmﬁcant role 1n the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date:  October 28,2016 By: /s/ Charles N. Eldred R

y
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( Charles N. Eldred
Executive Vice President and
ChiefFinancial Officer

Public Service Company of New Mexico
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Texas-New Mexico Power Company
577 N. Garden Ridge Blvd.
Lewisville, Texas 75067

EXHIBIT 31.5
CERTIFICATION

I, Patricia K Collawn, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Texas-New Mexico Power Company;

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1n light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the peniod covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included 1n this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented 1n this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

Date:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the peniod in which this report 1s being prepared,

Designed such mtemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
superviston, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclustons about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (each registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter 1n the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of interal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s interal
control over financial reporting.

October 28,2016 By: /s/ Patricia K Collawn

Patricia K. Collawn
Chief Executive Officer
Texas-New Mexico Power Company
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Texas-New Mexico Power Company
577 N. Garden Ridge Blvd
Lewisville, Texas 75067

EXHIBIT 31.6
CERTIFICATION

L, Charles N Eldred, certify that: . ot ‘

1. Thavereviewed this QuarterlymRepon on Form 1 0-Q of Texas-New Mexico Power Company;

2. ‘Based on my knowledge, this:report does not cqﬁtain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1n light of the circumstances under which such statements weré made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included 1n this report, fairly present in all matenal respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined 1in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have: ;

e e . IO . . N
Secs TEXAS NEVZ ™G0 POTER 100 1 1, Srbe 75, 2005 s e b e ¢ e 29 R

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the penod in which this report 1s being prepared;

<Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or,caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred dunng the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (each registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions).

'

a) All significant deficiencies and*matenial weaknesses 1n the design or operation of intemmal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal
control over financial reporting.

" October 28,2016 By: /s/Charles N Eldred

Charles N. Eldred
Executive Vice President and
ChiefFinancial Officer

Texas-New Mexico Power Company
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PNM Resources

414 Silver Ave. SW
Albuquerque, NM 87102-3289
WWW pnmresources.com

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 US.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2016, for PNM Resources, Inc. (“Company™), as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October 28, 2016 (“Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0of 2002, that.

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of § 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all matenal respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: October 28,2016 By: /s/Patricia K. Collawn
Patnicia K. Collawn
President and Chief Executive Officer
PNM Resources, Inc.

By. /s/ Charles N. Eldred
Charles N. Eldred
Executive Vice President and
ChiefFinancial Officer
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Public Service Company ofNévy Mexico
414 Silver Ave. SW
Albuquerque, NM 87102-3289

, EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 US.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2016, for Public Service Company of New Mexico (“Company™),
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 28,2016 (“Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company certifies, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0£2002, that:*

(1) the Report fully compliys with the requirements of § 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, 1n all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date.  October 28,2016 By: /s/Patricia K Collawn
A Patricia K. Collawn
President and Chief Executive Officer
Public Service Company of New Mexico

By: /s/ Charles N. Eldred
Charles N. Eldred
Executive Vice President and |
A Chief Financial Officer
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Texas-New Mexico Power Company
577N Garden Ridge Blvd
Lewisville, Texas 75067

EXHIBIT 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 US.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the penod ended September 30, 2016, for Texas-New Mexico Power Company (“Company™), as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 28, 2016 (“Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company certifies, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of § 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operattons of the Company.
Date:  October 28,2016 By. /s/ Patricia K. Collawn
Patricia K. Collawn
Chief Executive Officer
Texas-New Mexico Power Company

By: /s/ Charles N. Eldred
Charles N. Eldred
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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